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          1  FINANCE AND GENERAL WELFARE COMMITTEES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to the Finance Committee's hearings on the

          4  Mayor's Executive Budget for Fiscal Year 2008.

          5                 My name is David Weprin, and I chair

          6  the Council's Finance Committee. This morning's

          7  budget hearing will be held jointly with the

          8  Council's General Welfare Committee, chaired by

          9  Council Member DeBlasio, to hear testimony

         10  pertaining to the proposed budget, Department of

         11  Homeless Services.

         12                 We've been joined by a couple of

         13  colleagues, and we'll be joined by more as the

         14  morning progresses. We have Council Member Annabel

         15  Palma, from the Bronx, and we have Council Member

         16  Lew Fidler from Brooklyn. And I saw Council Member

         17  Peter Vallone, Jr., but we'll reintroduce him when

         18  he comes back.

         19                 In this Executive Budget, the

         20  Department has received a number of changes to their

         21  budget from last year. Some programs were

         22  eliminated, some were added, others were expanded.

         23  The Advantage New York Program is one of the

         24  programs that was added. This program began in April

         25  2007, and replaced the Housing Stability Plus Rental
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          2  Assistance Program, which many believe created work

          3  disincentives. Work advantage is the largest portion

          4  of the Advantage New York hodge podge and seeks to

          5  avoid the pitfalls of Housing Stability Plus by only

          6  being available to working shelter clients, as well

          7  as matching the income amount that clients save.

          8  Because the program is only a month old, that

          9  Council has few details about how the funding for

         10  the supplements will work.

         11                 There is a little bit of confusion

         12  because the previous program, Housing Stability

         13  Plus, was funded through the public assistance

         14  budget, because all of its clients were on public

         15  assistance.

         16                 However, as the name implies, not all

         17  work advantage clients will be on public assistance,

         18  and as of today it is unclear how that segment of

         19  the program will be funded, thus making it difficult

         20  to accurately gauge the program's cost.

         21                 Today we hope that the Commissioner

         22  will provide a little more detail on this issue.

         23  After we hear from the Department of Homeless

         24  Services, we will be joined by the Council's

         25  Committee on Public Safety, chaired by Council
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          2  Member Peter Vallone, Jr., to hear testimony from

          3  the New York City Police Department.

          4                 In the afternoon, the Finance and

          5  Public Safety Committees will hear testimony from

          6  the Civilian Complaint Review Board and the District

          7  Attorney/Special Prosecutor. After those agencies

          8  testify, Finance will hear from the City University

          9  of New York. Prior to adjourning, we'll be hearing

         10  from members of the public who would like to

         11  testify, and any of those agencies.

         12                 We've also been joined by Council

         13  Member Jessica Lappin, from Manhattan, and I'll turn

         14  the mic over to my co-chair, Chairman Bill DeBlasio.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very

         16  much, Chair Weprin. You have a lively day ahead of

         17  you, many different topics.

         18                 Look, I just want to say we are very

         19  anxious to hear from the Commissioner, particularly

         20  on the new program, the Work Advantage Program, and

         21  the other pieces. I think there are a tremendous

         22  amount of unanswered questions, and we have been

         23  looking forward anxiously to this opportunity, since

         24  our last hearing specifically on the transition from

         25  HSP to the Advantage New York Program.
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          2                 Let me also just thank the many staff

          3  who helped put together today's hearing, including

          4  Freya Riel, Molly Murphy, Erin Feinstein, James

          5  Reyes and Veronica McNeill. Thank you all for your

          6  work.

          7                 And with no further ado, we look

          8  forward to the testimony from Commissioner Hess.

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you,

         10  Chairman DeBlasio and Chairman Weprin. Members of

         11  the Committee, good morning. I am Rob Hess of the

         12  Department of Homeless Services, and joining me at

         13  the table are Steve Pock, to my left, DHS's Deputy

         14  Commissioner of Fiscal and Procurement Operations,

         15  and Lula Urquhart, the Assistant Commissioner for

         16  Budget and Audit is to my right.

         17                 A little over a hear ago I left

         18  Philadelphia for New York City to take the helm at

         19  DHS. I was honored to lead the agency charged with

         20  operating what is the most sophisticated and

         21  comprehensive homeless services shelter system in

         22  the nation. I was humbled by the charge that lay

         23  before me and my staff at DHS.

         24                 To continue to build upon the

         25  agency's previous four years in significant progress
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          2  toward meeting Mayor Bloomberg's five-year action

          3  plan to reduce homelessness by two-thirds by 2009.

          4                 I welcome this morning's opportunity

          5  to share the considerable progress, as well as the

          6  lessons learned during the past year. I am pleased

          7  to report that DHS has come a long way.

          8                 We have devoted significant resources

          9  measuring our progress, evaluating our programs and

         10  services, developing new strategies, while enhancing

         11  others, and investing in continuous improvement.

         12                 As part of our commitment to ongoing

         13  self assessment, we have spent innumerable hours

         14  talking about clients we serve and the non-profit

         15  providers we partner with, as well as with elected

         16  officials, and members of the community.

         17                 Our efforts to meet the goal of the

         18  Mayor's five-year plan has led to a series of

         19  innovative and exciting reforms that DHS is proud to

         20  share with you today.

         21                 In just a few months from now new

         22  outreach providers will take to the streets, what

         23  was once a desperate group of providers with

         24  overlapping jurisdictions throughout the five

         25  boroughs, will be replaced with a more comprehensive
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          2  system that will eliminate redundancy and

          3  inefficiency.

          4                 Building on our collaboration with

          5  the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene, DHS

          6  will assume contractual oversight, while DOHMH will

          7  assume clinical oversight of a vastly improved

          8  outreach delivery system.

          9                 We are coupling our more coordinated

         10  approach with greater access to and a wider array of

         11  housing options for homeless New Yorkers living on

         12  our streets. As a result, more men and women will

         13  leave the streets for the housing where they can get

         14  the services and support that they need.

         15                 We understand that prevention is a

         16  key component to any chronic homelessness, and

         17  therefore we have nearly doubled our investment in

         18  the nationally recognized HomeBase Prevention

         19  Program. We realize that one-size does not fit all,

         20  and therefore we are currently employing new

         21  operation models and strategies, both within and

         22  outside of the traditional shelter system to combat

         23  homelessness. These include safe havens and next

         24  step shelters, which I will describe in a moment.

         25                 Moreover, we recognize that HSP has
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          2  served its purpose providing more than 10,000

          3  families and individuals with housing, but it had

          4  run its course, and it was time to provide different

          5  types of rental subsidies to meet the very needs of

          6  the clients. And so we developed and recently

          7  launched Advantage New York, a new rental assistance

          8  program, the centerpiece of which is Work Advantage,

          9  a rental subsidy that makes work pay.

         10                 Let me now turn to the discussion of

         11  each of these major reforms.

         12                 Shortly after I moved from

         13  Philadelphia, in New York I spent many nights

         14  working with street outreach teams and talking with

         15  the men and women living on our streets. In

         16  discussions with DHS staff, we concluded that a more

         17  coordinated and expanded approach toward addressing

         18  street homelessness was key to increasing the

         19  effectiveness of our outreach efforts.

         20                 Therefore, last summer DHS initiated

         21  discussions with DOHMH about revamping the City's

         22  outreach efforts, and in November the two agencies

         23  issued a joint request for proposal.

         24                 This has led to the creation of a

         25  single point of accountability in each borough,
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          2  greater collaboration and coordination between DOH

          3  and DOHMH, and DHS, and their outreach providers,

          4  and their use of advanced technology to track and

          5  analyze data to better inform our outreach efforts.

          6  But that's not all we've done to overcome street

          7  homelessness. Over the past six months, DHS, in

          8  collaboration with over 13 City and State agencies

          9  identified 70 encampments throughout the City, all

         10  were cleared out, and 68 homeless New Yorkers

         11  previously living in those encampments moved into

         12  permanent housing.

         13                 Gregory S. is one of those

         14  individuals. Before his encampment was cleared, this

         15  53-year-old had been living on the streets for about

         16  seven years. He repeatedly refused to stay indoors,

         17  even when previously escorted to a drop-in center,

         18  he would leave within the hour.

         19                 His desire to stay on the streets was

         20  so intense, he did not come indoors, even after

         21  losing all of his toes to frostbite. But because of

         22  the intensive outreach conducted collaboratively by

         23  several agencies, including during the encampment

         24  initiative, Gregory S. finally decided to try The

         25  Prince, a facility run by our non-profit partner
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          2  Common Ground, which caters to clients who live on

          3  the streets.

          4                 The first week he stayed four days.

          5  The second week six days, and he's been there ever

          6  since, every single night, marking the first time in

          7  the last seven years that he has voluntarily stayed

          8  indoors for more than two consecutive nights. Now he

          9  is on his way to getting permanent housing. Having

         10  been found eligible for New York New York Supportive

         11  Housing, which I'll talk about a little later, I

         12  call this progress.

         13                 This well-coordinated massive effort

         14  does not end here. Over the next year, the City will

         15  continue its collaborative efforts to ensure that

         16  new encampments do not arise in place of those that

         17  been torn down.

         18                 Just a few weeks ago, DHS announced

         19  the results of the City's third Citywide Homeless

         20  Outreach Population Estimate, or HOPE. Unsheltered

         21  homelessness is down 15 percent from 2005, the first

         22  year DHS conducted HOPE in all five boroughs, and 19

         23  percent fewer individuals are living on City streets

         24  or in our parks since 2006.

         25                 Homeless individuals living
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          2  unsheltered continue to decline, will remain steady

          3  after steep declines in four out of five boroughs.

          4  But we can do better.

          5                 We've always said that HOPE is an

          6  effective tool to help us adjust programs and

          7  policies.

          8                 The 2007 results revealed an increase

          9  in the number of homeless New Yorkers living in our

         10  City's subways. So, earlier this month, Lee Sander,

         11  the MTA, Chief Executive Officer and I, announced an

         12  alliance between our agencies and the subway

         13  outreach provider BRC, to address chronic

         14  homelessness in the subway. DHS and the MTA will

         15  move forward in partnership to create a more

         16  integrated system of outreach on the surface and in

         17  our subways since many of the clients targeted move

         18  between both systems.

         19                 The Partnership will focus on

         20  increased access to low-threshold housing options,

         21  such as save havens and stabilization beds for

         22  subway outreach teams. Our Partnership will also

         23  include coordination of vital data collected between

         24  both groups, as well as special initiatives at Penn

         25  Station, one of the three highest density transit
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          2  areas with homeless individuals identified in the

          3  HOPE 2007.

          4                 As Chairman DeBlasio is aware, far

          5  too often families and individuals are forced in

          6  shelter, when the right connection to preventative

          7  neighborhood resources could have made a tremendous

          8  difference and kept them in their homes and in their

          9  communities.

         10                 Currently the City targets New

         11  Yorkers in high-risk communities to better identify

         12  households that are likely to become homeless and

         13  enter shelter.

         14                 In March I advised you that DHS

         15  HomeBase Program would nearly double its funding

         16  from 12 million to over 20 million, and expand its

         17  prevention services Citywide.

         18                 Currently HomeBase serves families

         19  and individuals in six high-need communities who are

         20  at risk of becoming homeless by helping them to

         21  overcome their housing crisis before they need to

         22  seek shelter.

         23                 Since its inception September of

         24  2004, the program has helped over 6,300 families and

         25  individuals with 94 percent having remained in homes

                                                            15

          1  FINANCE AND GENERAL WELFARE COMMITTEES

          2  and out of shelter.

          3                 The program has also served over

          4  8,200 children helping to stabilize their families

          5  within their own communities and prevent children

          6  from experiencing the disruptions associated with

          7  leaving the community and moving into shelter.

          8                 These encouraging results led the

          9  City's decision to expand HomeBase and nearly double

         10  our investment in this innovative prevention effort.

         11                 In January 2007, we issued an RFP to

         12  HomeBase Services Citywide. We are presently

         13  evaluating proposals. We expect that Citywide

         14  prevention services, including landlord mediation,

         15  household budgeting, legal services, and short-term

         16  financial assistance will start later this year.

         17                 These services will go beyond

         18  traditional prevention initiatives to include

         19  diversion of shelter applicants during the

         20  application process and after care services for

         21  families and individuals that move out of shelter.

         22                 I'd like to share a story about Mr.

         23  E. and his son. They are the reason that we do the

         24  work that we do. Mr. E. is a single father of a

         25  13-year-old boy. After losing his job, Mr. E. was
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          2  evicted. For a short time, he and his son were able

          3  to stay with a relative, but then they had to apply

          4  for shelter.

          5                 HomeBase representatives at our

          6  family intake center PATH, engaged Mr. E. when he

          7  applied for shelter. After learning about HomeBase

          8  Services available right in his community, he

          9  received a referral to our CAMBA HomeBase provider

         10  and met with a caseworker the next day.

         11                 CAMBA HomeBase was able to locate an

         12  apartment and Mr. E. and his son moved in that very

         13  same day. But their success story doesn't end there.

         14  CAMBA and HomeBase helped Mr. E. find a job. Three

         15  days later he was employed in the food service

         16  industry, reflecting a long-time career interest and

         17  aspiration. His son is happily attending school, and

         18  his father and son are planning a future based on

         19  stability.

         20                 Too often we hear about the system

         21  not working, but this is what happens when the

         22  system works. Our goal, one I'm sure we share with

         23  members of City Council, is to serve more clients

         24  with outcomes like Mr. E's.

         25                 This spring we also expanded our join
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          2  diversion efforts with HRA and PATH by doubling the

          3  number of HRA staff at the facility. Every family

          4  entering PATH will meet with a diversion worker to

          5  determine if they may be assisted with staying in

          6  the community instead of entering shelter.

          7                 Last summer the City announced the

          8  closing of the nation's largest shelter for single

          9  men, Camp LaGuardia, 1,001-bed facility. The closing

         10  was made possible because of a significant decrease

         11  in the adult shelter population.

         12                 Currently 40 men still reside at

         13  Camp, but by May 31st, they will all move into

         14  permanent housing or other facilities. The closure

         15  will result in annual shelter savings of $16

         16  million, allowing us to reinvest these dollars into

         17  alternatives to shelter.

         18                 The City has come a long way from a

         19  one size fits all approach to serving clients who

         20  are experiencing or at risk of experiencing

         21  homelessness.

         22                 Earlier I mentioned the work that DHS

         23  is doing to address the urgent needs of New Yorkers

         24  living on our streets. Shortly the agency will issue

         25  an RFP to procure safe havens. The safe haven model
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          2  is a low threshold transitional housing targeted to

          3  street homeless clients who chose to remain on the

          4  street rather than entering the shelter system.

          5  Placement into a safe haven will improve the

          6  individual's standard of living and leave him or her

          7  to acceptance of alternative housing options.

          8                 This is a vitally important next step

          9  for addressing the needs of our street population.

         10  What we know about those who choose to live

         11  unsheltered is that they have decided the

         12  traditional shelter system does not work for them.

         13  For some the shelters are too large. For others,

         14  there are too many rules to follow, such as nightly

         15  curfew. In contrast, the save haven is smaller in

         16  scale and will have few barriers to entry.

         17                 Last year our Family Services

         18  Division implemented a pilot program in our

         19  Catherine Street Facility called LIFE. While the

         20  majority of clients can make the transition from

         21  shelter back to independent living, some clients

         22  need extra help. This pilot provided just that.

         23  Intensive case management and social services, daily

         24  interactions between clients and staff and focused

         25  staff coordination on helping long-term-stayer
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          2  families move out of shelter and into permanent

          3  housing.

          4                 Families entering LIFE typically

          5  found and moved into permanent housing within 31

          6  days after an average stay in shelter of 4.7 years.

          7  As a result of the pilot's success, I directed

          8  Family Services to bring this model to other

          9  families, so that more families could benefit.

         10                 Just last week the pilot program was

         11  implemented at new sites within existing facilities

         12  now called "Next Steps." This brings us to a total

         13  of five Next Steps sites for families with children.

         14  The number of Next Steps sites will increase this

         15  summer when we open two sites that will serve a

         16  single adult population and two that will serve

         17  adult families.

         18                 I would now like to turn the

         19  discussion of our new Rental Subsidy Program, but

         20  first I want to address the increase in our family

         21  shelter population and our success in meeting this

         22  increased demand.

         23                 Recognizing that the family census

         24  continues to be a challenging area for us, DHS

         25  continues to analyze intake and eligibility data and
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          2  make all necessary modifications to ensure that

          3  families' applications for shelter are processed in

          4  a timely manner with correct determinations for

          5  eligibility.

          6                 Even with the increase in the family

          7  shelter population, I'd like to emphasize that we

          8  have successfully met this increased demand by

          9  sheltering all families whom we have determined are

         10  eligible for short-term emergency housing.

         11                 Moreover, our families continue to

         12  benefit from significantly shorter processing times,

         13  and intensive supports throughout the application

         14  and eligibility process.

         15                 This includes the services of the

         16  resource room in PATH, which is staffed with

         17  clinical social workers. In addition, we have built

         18  a client and quality assurance safeguards, such as

         19  mid-point case conferences, legal conferences, and

         20  right to a state fair hearing. Our 92 percent

         21  success rate at State Fair hearings for 2007 to date

         22  is testament to the seriousness of which we take our

         23  responsibilities to render accurate eligibility

         24  determinations, and to the accuracy of our

         25  determinations.
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          2                 Our successful response to families

          3  increase demand for shelter does not mark the end of

          4  our efforts. First, let's not forget that HSP has

          5  nearly 10,000 families previously living in shelter

          6  with a one-year recidivism rate of less than four

          7  percent.

          8                 Second, we have launched our new

          9  rental subsidy program Advantage New York, which is

         10  tailored to meet the varying needs of our clients in

         11  providing them with the assistance they need to out

         12  of shelter and into homes of their own.

         13                 We are hopeful that Advantage New

         14  York will go a long way toward increasing the number

         15  of families leaving shelter for permanent housing.

         16                 Advantage New York provides a series

         17  of rental assistance options to meet the very needs

         18  of our clients. The centerpiece of Advantage

         19  Program, Work Advantage, is available to all clients

         20  who have resided in shelter for 90 days, work at

         21  least 20 hours per week, with incomes below 150

         22  percent of the federal poverty level and have an

         23  active PA status.

         24                 Unlike HSP, the program allows

         25  clients to advance up the employment ladder without
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          2  losing the rental subsidy.

          3                 Moreover, Work Advantage is more

          4  attractive to landlords because it not only

          5  guarantees 100 percent of the first year's rent,

          6  with the possibility of guaranteeing the second

          7  year's rent in full, but also pays a higher monthly

          8  rent than HSP.

          9                 Work Advantage is far more than a

         10  rental subsidy. The program includes access to jobs,

         11  workforce development and transitional benefits,

         12  such as food stamps, health care and child care.

         13                 The program rewards work, provides

         14  incentives to increase earnings and save money,

         15  promoted long-term independence and guarantees

         16  payment to landlords to one and possibly two years

         17  of rent.

         18                 Work Advantage is further enhanced by

         19  financial education and guidance. The Department of

         20  Consumer Affairs' Office of Financial Empowerment is

         21  working with DHS on fostering financial literacy,

         22  expanding access to low-fee accounts and structuring

         23  the program's matched-savings component. OFE will

         24  also, will help clients access tax credits and

         25  appropriate banking options, with the emphasis on
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          2  helping clients make their money grow for the

          3  future.

          4                 The Advantage Program also offers

          5  rental assistance to two special populations,

          6  individuals and families receiving benefits and

          7  those who are on fixed income, and families who have

          8  an active ACS while in shelter.

          9                 Families and individuals who receive

         10  federal benefits, such as Supplemental Security

         11  Income, SSI, or Social Security Disability

         12  Insurance, SSDI, and families with an active ACS

         13  case will receive a rental subsidy under Fixed

         14  Income and Children Advantage, respectively.

         15                 We know from experience that families

         16  with an open ACS case often need long-term support

         17  and stable housing to avoid break up of the family

         18  unit, while family members and individuals with

         19  disabilities, or other medical issues, often require

         20  specialized support in a stable housing environment.

         21                 Those clients are in one of the

         22  special needs groups I've just described, will

         23  receive up to a year of rental assistance as well as

         24  support in applying for Section 8. Clients will be

         25  required to locate and secure apartments that meet
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          2  the guidelines for Section 8, and State After Care

          3  providers will assist clients in completing and

          4  submitting Section 8 Priority Applications to NYCHA.

          5                 After Care Services and additional

          6  supports will also be available to assist these

          7  families in transitioning back to the community.

          8                 Finally, there are clients who simply

          9  do not require a full year of rental assistance.

         10  Some clients need only the right level of financial

         11  help to get themselves back on their feet after a

         12  particular financial or other setback that triggers

         13  an actual potential housing crisis.

         14                 Short-term advantage provides

         15  one-time financial assistance in the form of

         16  four-months rent plus security deposit, brokers fees

         17  and a furniture allowance.

         18                 What is truly innovative about

         19  Advantage New York is that it compliments rental

         20  subsidy with additional support and it's designed to

         21  meet the specific needs of individuals and families

         22  in our shelter system.

         23                 In the past few weeks, members of my

         24  senior staff and I have visited shelters throughout

         25  this City. We have personally met with clients and
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          2  shelter staff to explain Advantage New York, and at

          3  every shelter we have visited the response to the

          4  new program has been extremely positive.

          5                 Most clients really want to work and

          6  to find a home of their own. And most staff believe

          7  that those living in shelter need benefits and

          8  services that empower clients to lead independent

          9  lives.

         10                 Of equal importance is the fact that

         11  with any new initiative or program we launch, we

         12  will utilize data driven approach toward evaluating

         13  Advantage New York, and we will regularly review

         14  outcomes to determine if any mid-course corrections

         15  are required.

         16                 As you can see, our approach toward

         17  meeting the goals of the Mayor Bloomberg Five-Year

         18  Plan is multi-pronged. I already have talked about

         19  expansion of existing initiatives and launching of

         20  new ones, from a complete revamping of our outreach

         21  work, to our Citywide expansion of HomeBase, from

         22  development of new shelter models to development of

         23  Safe Havens, and more.

         24                 DHS also continues to develop its

         25  network of housing options, including New York/New
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          2  York III supportive housing. Under the NY/NY III

          3  agreement, the City and State committed to jointly

          4  develop 9,000 units of supportive housing. A hundred

          5  and eighty-five apartments have already been

          6  developed for chronically homeless DHS clients who

          7  live with serious and persistent mental illness. The

          8  scattered-sit units are being implemented by 17

          9  providers who will operate mobile crisis case

         10  management teams that will serve the residents. To

         11  date, 11 providers have filled a total of 135 units.

         12  The final six providers, accounting for 50

         13  additional units in this phase are expected to come

         14  on board before the end of the fiscal year.

         15  Forty-one clients have already moved into units

         16  under this program.

         17                 Finally, I would like to focus

         18  briefly on the Fiscal Year 2008 Executive budget.

         19  For the current year, Fiscal Year '07, the

         20  Department Expense Budget was $733 million. For next

         21  year, Fiscal Year '08, the budget is $678 million.

         22  Of the $678 million, 310 million are City funds, 215

         23  million are State funds, 118 million are federal

         24  funds, 4 million are grant funding, and 31 million

         25  are intra-city funding. The 678 million budget
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          2  allocates 281 million to services for single adults,

          3  336 million services for families and 61 million to

          4  support services.

          5                 The DHS Capital Budget for the

          6  five-year period, Fiscal Year '07 through Fiscal

          7  Year '11, is currently 194 million. Capital projects

          8  for homeless families total 118 million, projects

          9  for single adults total 52 million, 19 million have

         10  been allocated for support services, and 5 million

         11  for City Council funded projects.

         12                 In conclusion, I want to thank you

         13  again for giving me this opportunity to speak about

         14  DHS's initiatives aimed to prevent homelessness

         15  whenever possible, provide short-term emergency

         16  shelter and re-housing support whenever needed, and

         17  ultimately to overcome homelessness all together.

         18                 I am happy to answer any questions

         19  you may have.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you,

         21  Commissioner Hess. We've been joined by a few more

         22  colleagues. We have Council Member Diana Reyna from

         23  Brooklyn and Queens, and our Minority Leader

         24  Councilman Jim Oddo from Staten Island and Brooklyn.

         25                 You have a very ambitious program and
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          2  it looks like you made a lot of progress. But, you

          3  know, I'm a little concerned about what appears to

          4  be a substantial cut in the Fiscal '08 budget from,

          5  by my reading, about $55 million from 733 million to

          6  678 million; what is reflected in that cut and does

          7  that include a reduction in State and Federal funds

          8  as well?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, the

         10  difference in 50 million is largely attributable to

         11  a $38 million allotment that we received this past

         12  fiscal year to support the growing family capacity.

         13  Our belief and expectation would be that if those

         14  funds were needed in '08, that they would be

         15  restored, but our hope is that all of our new

         16  strategies and programs will allow the census to

         17  decrease to a point where that will not be

         18  necessary.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So that's City

         20  money, the growing family allotment?

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: It's a combination

         22  of City, State and Federal. It's dollars that would

         23  be drawn down to meet family capacity needs, should

         24  that be necessary.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Has there been an
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          2  overall reduction of State and federal funding?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I don't believe

          4  so, no.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: So, you feel

          6  comfortable with this proposed cut, in light of some

          7  of the new programs that you're initiating and all

          8  of the major progress you've made?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes, Mr. Chairman,

         10  we're comfortable that we've got the funding in

         11  place for the strategies we need to drive our census

         12  down. We're also comfortable that we'll continue to

         13  be able to meet the needs of men, women and children

         14  in this City that may require a shelter on any given

         15  night, and if we need to make adjustments throughout

         16  the year, we'll, of course, be in a position to do

         17  that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Just

         19  quickly moving to the Capital Budget, and you have a

         20  four-year capital plan, so it's kind of hard to

         21  isolate what the projects are, but it's close to

         22  $200 million, the four-year capital plan. Can you

         23  kind of highlight for us the larger pieces of that

         24  capital plan, what some of the larger capital

         25  projects are?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I can, Mr.

          3  Chairman. The biggest piece is for the new family

          4  intake center. I think that's now at about 62

          5  million, and so that is the biggest chunk of the

          6  capital budget. The other biggest piece will go to

          7  repair and renovations of existing facilities, and

          8  that would be a variety of facilities.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay. Any other

         10  large capital projects we should know about?

         11                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think the vast

         12  majority fall into one of those two categories,

         13  either the family intake center construction, which

         14  again we think is about 62 million, or just repair

         15  and renovation of existing buildings.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: And you've had no

         17  problem with proceeding with the construction or

         18  renovation?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: No. We've worked

         20  closely with all of the appropriate City agencies

         21  and they have been supportive.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Okay, I'm going

         23  to turn the mic over to my co-chair DeBlasio.

         24                 Chair DeBlasio.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you very
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          2  much, Chair Weprin.

          3                 Commissioner, I always appreciate

          4  your optimism, because that's the only way anything

          5  gets done, and I appreciate your experience and I do

          6  think there's a lot to like in your testimony,

          7  particularly the ever-increasing focus on

          8  prevention, which is something a lot of us on this

          9  Committee feel very deeply about, and have for a

         10  long time. And I also appreciate the acknowledgment

         11  of what did and didn't work with HSP and the need

         12  for the change, and I appreciate a lot of the

         13  changes you've made.

         14                 I'm still perplexed and I was at the

         15  last hearing a few weeks ago on the broad sense that

         16  things will come into place or fall together so

         17  quickly or so nicely, I'm still troubled by that,

         18  and the point Chair Weprin raised a moment ago on

         19  the fact that you have not been able to yet see a

         20  change in your family shelter census, but your

         21  budget for that area is going down, this is a brand

         22  new program you're putting in place with Advantage

         23  New York, promising on some levels, but we also

         24  learned I think from HSP, the, you know, tough

         25  lesson that not everything works out as planned. So,
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          2  I just feel in general that your budget is based on

          3  a lot of very positive assumptions, and I think it's

          4  our job as an oversight entity to question that and

          5  say, well, what if? What if any number of things,

          6  what if the Advantage doesn't work out the way it's

          7  planned?

          8                 What I think I hear you saying is you

          9  believe you would get a budget mod readily if you

         10  were to have a problem getting your family shelter

         11  census down, or if in fact it were to go up, that

         12  basically you have a commitment to track whatever

         13  your situation is to provide you the resources you

         14  need; is that accurate?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Mr. Chairman, I'd

         16  say that's accurate. We only have to look back to

         17  last year. Last year we found ourselves in a

         18  situation where we need to add some family capacity.

         19  We added family capacity to the tune of about $38

         20  million, and we did receive the budget mod we need

         21  to meet the growing need. I would anticipate that

         22  should that be necessary, it will happen again. It

         23  is my sincere hope and my optimistic view,

         24  admittedly, that that not be necessary. The new

         25  strategies we're putting into place, and other
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          2  strategies that will come to light over time that

          3  undoubtedly we'll implement, will help families be

          4  able to stay in the community through, as you

          5  mentioned, one of those big strategies is

          6  prevention. We share your view and appreciate your

          7  leadership on this on the prevention side. We're

          8  taking it Citywide. As we find opportunities to

          9  expand it further, because certain things are

         10  working, then we will be open to that. And so I

         11  think this is very much a work-in-progress, that we

         12  need to analyze the data on a daily, weekly,

         13  monthly, quarterly, annual basis. We need to make

         14  mid-course adjustments as appropriate, but I think

         15  we need to keep our eye on the objective which I

         16  think we all share, which is that fewer men, women

         17  and children need to spend the night in our shelter

         18  system, and more men, women and children will be

         19  able to remain in the community and not need our

         20  shelter system. But for those that do need it, we'll

         21  provide a high quality, highly dignified, highly

         22  respectful environment for those families in crisis,

         23  how ever many that is, and help them move as quickly

         24  as possible back to the community with the supports

         25  they need to remain in the community and to thrive
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          2  in the community, and I think we all support those

          3  goals.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Do you have an

          5  equal commitment to keep moving resources into

          6  prevention if it continues to work?

          7                 For example, I'm very happy about

          8  your progress with Camp LaGuardia, and obviously

          9  some of that money is being reinvested. It doesn't

         10  appear from your testimony that all of that money is

         11  being reinvested. It sounds like some of that is

         12  going into an overall budget reduction, but it would

         13  seem to me that there should be in a sense an

         14  incentive here that every time the agency succeeds

         15  at prevention, there should be more investment in

         16  prevention, and less investment in our shelter

         17  system; do you have that kind of agreement with the

         18  OMB and with the Mayor's Office to keep adding

         19  resources into prevention if it keeps working?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, the Mayor

         21  has been very clear on this point and I appreciate

         22  you bringing it up. I mean, he has said over and

         23  over and again things that are working we should

         24  continue, we should expand, we should make

         25  additional investments, things that are not working
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          2  we should stop and retool and try new strategies,

          3  and that's exactly what I think is reflected

          4  throughout my testimony this morning. It's exactly

          5  with the approach that this Department has taken and

          6  continues to take. And, yes, we're absolutely

          7  committed to continuing that work. If we can figure

          8  out how prevention can reduction the number of

          9  people coming in our shelter system dramatically,

         10  we're going to just make that investment over and

         11  over again, because we think, as you do, that it's

         12  the right investment to make.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Well, I

         14  appreciate that, and we will, in a very collegial

         15  way, hold you to those words.

         16                 Let me ask you on Advantage New York,

         17  a couple of specifics, which I think there is

         18  obviously still a fair amount of confusion.

         19                 First of all, I have to be honest

         20  with you, I did not realize until I read your

         21  testimony today that the plan had been, if I'm

         22  reading this correctly, only to have Work Advantage

         23  available to folks with active public assistance

         24  cases. I thought this was a broader approach, in

         25  fact, because that was one of the problems with HSP;
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          2  am I missing something here?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Let me clarify it

          4  and this, I think, is important. The Chairman

          5  brought this up earlier. Here is what we did: under

          6  HSP, you had to be on public assistance, and so you

          7  had to be on public assistance, you would be able to

          8  leave shelter, your rent would be paid as long as

          9  you remained on public assistance. The challenge

         10  was, or one of the challenges was that if your

         11  public assistance was disrupted because there was a

         12  sanction or a case closing or so forth, your rent

         13  payment was then disrupted. We had to overcome that

         14  problem. And so with the Advantage programs, here is

         15  what happens. You need to be either on PA or single

         16  issue, your last day in shelter. But assuming you're

         17  on PA or single issue, your last day in shelter, we

         18  are able to draw down effectively the dollars we

         19  need to support the rental subsidy for the year.

         20                 And so once you move out of shelter

         21  with the advantage rental subsidy, at that point, if

         22  your PA is disrupted through sanctioning or case

         23  closing, it will not affect your rental payment.

         24  Does that make sense?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Yes. So, if
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          2  you're on PA by the day you start Work Advantage,

          3  you no longer need to be in the course of being on

          4  Work Advantage; is that what I'm hearing?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. That is

          7  an improvement. But where I'm also confused is, I

          8  had understood Work Advantage to also apply to be

          9  used as a tool, a prevention tool in effect, for

         10  people who are on the verge of going into shelter,

         11  and forgive me because you've bot a whole series of

         12  Advantage products here, so maybe I'm confusing my

         13  Advantages, but I thought part of this was also

         14  related to trying to stop movement into shelter at

         15  the front door, in effect, by giving people

         16  alternatives. But, obviously, if someone was a

         17  hard-working, low-income person that one paycheck

         18  away from losing their apartment and that started to

         19  happen and they showed up for shelter, then you

         20  could not use Work Advantage for them if they had no

         21  connection with public assistance. So, what do you

         22  do then?

         23                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, in that case

         24  we're doing a couple of things. First, we've doubled

         25  the number of HRA staff at PATH, so everybody goes
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          2  through the HRA diversion process. And we're seeing

          3  about 15 to 20 percent of folks who are able to be

          4  diverted from shelter at that point, given the wide

          5  array of HRA tools at their disposal to help

          6  families remain in the community.

          7                 But let's say you get through that

          8  hurdle, at that point we have the resource room at

          9  path, trained social workers that are bridging

         10  people back to the community, and if you get beyond

         11  that, then there is what we're calling HomeBase In

         12  Reach. So, let's say you get additional placement,

         13  there's still Home-Based workers that are going to

         14  meet with you and try to understand your situation

         15  and see if there is a way to help you avoid the need

         16  to come into shelter. And many times, as in the

         17  example I gave this morning in my testimony, we're

         18  able to help people return to the community through

         19  other products. Sometimes it's a one-shot from HRA,

         20  sometimes it's a different kind of rental subsidy

         21  program that somebody might be eligible for. But to

         22  answer your question, under those scenarios, Work

         23  Advantage would not be part of the menu of options

         24  that help someone prevent from going into shelter.

         25                 However, also remember that we've
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          2  taken our allocation of Section 8 certificates and

          3  attached them to HomeBase, so there is a variety of

          4  strategies, a variety of subsidy options that

          5  HomeBase has at its disposal in addition to the

          6  Advantage Programs.

          7                 Advantage Programs obviously are

          8  tailored for those that have actually entered the

          9  shelter system.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: In the case of

         11  that individual, working person, not public

         12  assistance, things are falling apart, you're saying

         13  you have your HomeBase approach, and they're showing

         14  up for shelter, one of the things you can do is

         15  divert it, if I'm understanding you, to different

         16  HomeBase-type approaches.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I think I hear

         19  you saying there are scenarios where you could use

         20  Section 8, and there are scenarios where you get

         21  other types of subsidies, but you could no use this

         22  particular subsidy.

         23                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So the only

         25  thing that would in a sense mimic this, in terms of
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          2  lengths, would be Section 8 at that point? Or you

          3  have other longer term pieces you could actually get

          4  in play if you thought someone made sense for it?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think there are

          6  at least a few others. I mean Jiggetts comes to

          7  mind. There is one-shots of variety of lengths, so I

          8  think there are some tools short of Section 8 that

          9  could be available, and some people will be

         10  appropriate for Section 8 and that's why we have

         11  attached that resource to our HomeBase providers.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I just have a

         13  couple of quick further Advantage questions and then

         14  I'm going to yield to my colleagues on questions. I

         15  may have just a couple at the end, I know we have a

         16  busy schedule here today so we'll keep it moving.

         17                 But on just the Work Advantage or on

         18  the Advantage New York, you know, I'm also confused

         19  on what this means for what we have to do with the

         20  State and federal government. Obviously you're

         21  talking about people, in a good way, I think, with

         22  Work Advantage, in making sure people have food

         23  stamps, making sure they have other types of

         24  benefits available to them. I'm concerned, do you

         25  need to get waivers to allow for this sort of
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          2  interplay of different subsidies going to people? Is

          3  there any danger that what you're trying to do would

          4  not be approved by State and federal government?

          5  It's my understanding, and HRA would be better to

          6  speak to this, it's my understanding that they are

          7  looking at the possibility of needing a waiver on

          8  the food stamp piece. When you get to the point of

          9  shelter savings and matching issues and income

         10  levels and all the rest.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So, you don't

         12  know for sure that someone could get food stamps

         13  while participating in Work Advantage?

         14                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes, you'll be

         15  able to get food stamps because the savings match

         16  doesn't come in til the end. But we want to avoid a

         17  longer term problem. I mean, what we're trying to do

         18  is create a model, and you rightfully asked for this

         19  at the last hearing, and we're working on it, a

         20  model for somebody to be able to succeed beyond the

         21  two-year point. And, so, part of that equation

         22  admittedly is having all of your benefits kind of

         23  turned on and available to you, including food

         24  stamps, because admittedly wages alone tragically

         25  will probably not get to the self-sufficiency. But
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          2  we think a combination of wages that are increasing,

          3  hours that are increasing, food stamps, EITC, child

          4  care benefits and other benefits kind of wrapped

          5  together as a package, we think can get folks there.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: So we don't

          7  think you need a waiver yet, but if I hear you

          8  correctly, if you don't get a waiver at some point

          9  in the near future on food stamps, you might run the

         10  risk of people getting cut off at some point; am I

         11  hearing you right?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We certainly are

         13  going to do everything we can to avoid that, and

         14  early indications are that we will be able to avoid

         15  that. But you're quite right, it is my understanding

         16  that we may need a waiver on the food stamps.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: No other

         18  waivers you know of you need? Or are there others?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: None that I've

         20  been advised of at this point.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay. And real

         22  quickly, two other Advantage issues. One, in terms

         23  of the time by which people need to find an

         24  apartment, if they're dealing with Work Advantage or

         25  maybe some other pieces as well, you know, we've
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          2  been seeing a growing problem with Section 8 in

          3  general of a number of Section voucher holders not

          4  being able to find an apartment in the relevant time

          5  frame, and therefore losing their right, and we can

          6  all see partly why, with what's going on in the

          7  housing market and the cost and the competition;

          8  what's the time frame in which you need to get

          9  someone approved to be able to go find an apartment

         10  and which time frame do we need to get that

         11  apartment before they might lose their rights?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: We're not going to

         13  put an outside date on -- Section 8, you're quite

         14  right, does have a limit and then I guess you have

         15  to recertify somehow or something to get the time

         16  limit extended. We're not going to do that. We'll

         17  keep it open ended on the back end.

         18                 Having said that, we obviously want

         19  to condense that time as much as possible and help

         20  some families and some individuals move out of

         21  shelter and back into the community as quickly as

         22  possible. So, we'll be providing a lot of

         23  assistance.

         24                 And, frankly, we have less of a

         25  bureaucratic burden with respect to implementing
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          2  this program than perhaps Section 8 would have, so

          3  we hope we can do it a little faster.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: That would be

          5  very helpful. On the front end, though, do people,

          6  once you identify them as eligible for one of the

          7  Advantage programs, do you give them a time limit by

          8  which they need to participate or sign up to be in

          9  an Advantage program?

         10                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I think the

         11  initial letters that went out went out in April and

         12  had an initial date by asking people to move by the

         13  end of June. And, so, we did do that. That should

         14  not be construed as a drop-dead date of any kind.

         15  But we certainly want to help families move as

         16  quickly as possible. As you know, Mr. Chairman, the

         17  summers tend to be when we see a little bit of an

         18  uptick if we want to see one, and we want to be as

         19  prepared for that as we can, and so we're doing

         20  everything we can to help as may families move out

         21  before the end of June as possible. If there are

         22  some families not moved out by the end of June, that

         23  will not eliminate or terminate their rights to the

         24  program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay, that's
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          2  good to hear. And I appreciate that, because we do

          3  want that flexibility. On one other piece on this

          4  and then just a question on domestic violence and

          5  how it works with these Advantage -- how you work

          6  with people who are domestic violence survivors in

          7  these Advantage programs, the quick other question,

          8  with landlords, they're supposed to get the $50

          9  payment each month from the client on the Work

         10  Advantage, we've talked last time about how you

         11  handle people who can't keep up to one level or

         12  another, but let's talk about the landlords. What if

         13  they're not getting their $50 payment over a series

         14  of months? What are you doing to fill that gap?

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, I mean I

         16  think there's a couple of things. One of the things

         17  I think HRA mentioned at our last hearing is that if

         18  somebody ran into a financial pothole, if you will,

         19  and needed some additional help during the course of

         20  the program, they could come back to HRA for an

         21  additional one-shot to deal with some of those

         22  issues.

         23                 We hope that that doesn't happen

         24  often or isn't necessary very often, but if and when

         25  it is, there are some options built into the
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          2  existing system. Remember, the Work Advantage is a

          3  new program to meet a specific need that doesn't

          4  eliminate any of the other resources people

          5  historically had at their disposal.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I guess I'm

          7  asking the narrow question of the landlord is not

          8  getting the amount of money he was expecting or she

          9  was expecting, do you specifically deal with that as

         10  an agency? So that you don't have the problem that

         11  we bluntly referred to often with HSP of, you know,

         12  the sliding scale with HSP created a difficulty or a

         13  challenge for landlords, I would think if there's

         14  supposed to be $50 a month from a client and you

         15  have several clients in your building and it happens

         16  maybe some of them are not doing it, it starts to

         17  add up. So, do you have a way of working directly

         18  with landlords on that so you don't disincentivize

         19  them from working with this program?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes, we have a hot

         21  line a landlord could call. If we were made aware of

         22  that, we would refer it to the HomeBase provider and

         23  have the HomeBase provider go see what's going on. I

         24  mean, that could be one red flag that may indicate

         25  that there is a challenge with that particular
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          2  family that they're facing and they faced a crisis

          3  and we're going to want to intervene and provide as

          4  much support as we can as early as we can. So, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Okay.

          6                 On domestic violence. Just to say,

          7  you know, with HSP, I thought one of the things that

          8  was good was there was a clear acknowledgment of how

          9  to handle domestic violence survivors and I thought

         10  there was a lot of flexibility. Obviously, we're

         11  talking about, you know, very sensitive dynamics and

         12  a situation that a domestic violence survivor cannot

         13  necessarily qualify in the same way or a follow-up

         14  program in the same way, particularly if the woman

         15  happens to have children.

         16                 But just to be clear, how are you

         17  making accommodations with the Advantage programs

         18  for victims of domestic violence?

         19                 COMMISSIONER HESS: All victims of

         20  domestic violence in the shelter system will be

         21  eligible, same as shelter recipients. We'll manage

         22  the program, but HRA will advise those clients that

         23  are eligible and support them in accessing the

         24  program, but they'll have full access, full menu of

         25  the Advantage Program.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Obviously, both

          3  in terms of employment and in terms of housing,

          4  something this Council has worked on, there are

          5  sensitive dynamics, in terms of where a DV survivor

          6  can go. So, I guess it's the same question about

          7  time lines and the kind of support you provide. I

          8  would think it's going to be more challenging to

          9  work with an individual case with a survivor

         10  sometimes, is that flexibility going to be a part of

         11  how you handle survivors in the Advantage program?

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Yes. In fact,

         13  you're quite right. Given some of the time

         14  limitations and shelter in the DV system, there is

         15  some creative thought and flexibility being

         16  discussed now between DHS and HRA staff and we're

         17  certainly going to defer to HRA staff with respect

         18  to what that flexibility should look like to work

         19  best for their clients within their system.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We'd really

         21  appreciate your reporting back to us, when you have

         22  figured out those dynamics. We think it's crucial

         23  that the flexibility be the policy and be very

         24  clearly stated between the two agencies.

         25                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Happy to do that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. Some

          3  of my colleagues have questions, I'll come back at

          4  the end.

          5                 Council Member Lew Fidler.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman. Good morning, Commissioner.

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Good morning.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: For those of

         10  you who have a New York City Council ScoreCard and

         11  Play Book, you know that I chair the Youth Services

         12  Committee, and in that capacity I have raised the

         13  issue of runaway and homeless youth repeatedly. It's

         14  a subject that agitates me intensely. There are

         15  3,000 a night, 30,000 a year, young people sleeping

         16  on the streets of the City of New York absent a

         17  transitional or crisis shelter bed.

         18                 And I recognize that the primary

         19  responsibility for runaway and homeless youth

         20  resides at DYCD, but I do know that DHS plays some

         21  role.

         22                 I know that when you were here for

         23  the Preliminary Budget you testified that 26 percent

         24  of the young people who age out of foster care wind

         25  up in the shelter system. Are we speaking only of
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          2  DHS shelters or both the DYCD and DHS shelters?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Strictly DHS

          4  shelters.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: So then the

          6  number of young people who age out of foster care

          7  that wind up sleeping on the streets of New York has

          8  to far exceed 26 percent?

          9                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's very

         10  possible.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Can you tell

         12  me what efforts DHS is making, either with or

         13  without DYCD to talk to ACS about that problem?

         14  Because that is -- I mean, we've spent a great deal

         15  of time talking about prevention, and I raised the

         16  issue with Commissioner Horn of the people who leave

         17  the correctional system and wind up in the shelter

         18  system as young people, this would seem to be a huge

         19  prevention issue. What are we doing about it?

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, there are a

         21  couple of things, Councilman, I would mention. I

         22  would appreciate you bringing this up. It is a very

         23  serious problem.

         24                 I think the first thing that I would

         25  tell you is that the collaboration with ACS and DHS
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          2  has improved tremendously over the last year. We're

          3  sharing data in ways that we've never done before.

          4  We're very encouraged by that.

          5                 Our Children's Advantage Program I

          6  think is a preventative system for the next

          7  generation in some ways, we're saying that if ACS

          8  has open cases and identified families that are in

          9  our shelter system, that are in need in a long-term

         10  housing subsidy, that under children's advantage we

         11  will move them into the community and help them get

         12  a permanent subsidy so they can focus on keeping

         13  their family together and not having children that

         14  ending up leaving the home or not having the home,

         15  ending up on our streets or in other situations.

         16                 So, I view that as a strong

         17  preventative measure. That said, all of our new

         18  outreach contracts have the responsibility of

         19  interacting with all the appropriate agencies and

         20  all the appropriate City resources to help greatly

         21  reduce by two-thirds or more the number of people

         22  living on our streets, and that's all people, to

         23  include youth. And, so, we would expect in all five

         24  boroughs there will now be a single accountability

         25  that will be developing their own individual
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          2  strategies and prevention plans with other City

          3  agencies and other agencies that provide support in

          4  the City to help people move rapidly off the streets

          5  in the housing with whatever support they would

          6  need, and that all of those new systems and

          7  contracts be fully implemented and on the street by

          8  early fall this year.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Commissioner,

         10  young people aging out of the foster care system are

         11  not really the focus of a keeping families together

         12  initiative, by and large. They are frequently and

         13  generally individual youth. So, I'm not really sure

         14  that the gist of your answer addressed by question.

         15  And I'm really most concerned with what the specific

         16  strategy is with ACS? I mean, what is being done

         17  with ACS to make sure a child ages out of foster

         18  care that they don't wind up in a shelter bed or

         19  needing a shelter bed from either DHS or DYCD.

         20                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Let me get back to

         21  you in writing with a full description of the

         22  various programs that we have in conjunction with

         23  ACS that are addressing the specific targeted

         24  population that you mentioned.

         25                 I can tell you that we have a number
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          2  of even residential programs where youth -- we're

          3  funding in part and ACS is funding in part, youth

          4  that age out of foster care to be able to live

          5  independently with some success. But let me get you

          6  the numbers and the programs and the specific

          7  strategies in some detail to better answer your

          8  question.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I'm going to

         10  ask you to do even better than that, Commissioner,

         11  with the permission of Chairman DeBlasio, I would

         12  appreciate it if DHS and ACS would come to a Youth

         13  Services Committee meeting to discuss this part of

         14  the Runaway and Homeless Youth Problem; would you do

         15  that?

         16                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I would be happy

         17  to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: We would love

         19  to work with you on that, Commissioner.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you.

         21                 And as to the budget aspect of this,

         22  how many shelter facilities, I assume crisis shelter

         23  bed facilities, does DHS run that are dedicated to

         24  youth exclusively?

         25                 COMMISSIONER HESS: One currently.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: And can you

          3  tell me what the budget cost to that facility is and

          4  how many young people it houses?

          5                 COMMISSIONER HESS: My recollection is

          6  that DHS is only a partial funder, and we put a

          7  couple hundred thousand dollars into the program,

          8  and it's 20 or 30 beds. But we'll get you the exact

          9  number.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Is there any

         11  particular reason that DHS runs that program as

         12  opposed to DYCD?

         13                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I'm actually not

         14  sure who the lead agency is on it. We only fund a

         15  small portion of it. But, again, we'll get you the

         16  details.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Okay.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I don't want to

         19  say something that's not going to be accurate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: I think the

         21  general, the general topic is probably more

         22  appropriate as something more than just a budget

         23  hearing, but as long as we are here on the budget, I

         24  am concerned, since quite frankly, the funding for

         25  runaway and homeless youth in the City of New York
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          2  is woefully inadequate, as is the number of shelter

          3  beds is woefully inadequate as is, I'm very

          4  concerned about using every dollar that we can the

          5  most effective way that we can, and that's why I

          6  raise it here at the budget hearing. And I kind of

          7  wonder sometimes why we have more than one agency

          8  providing this service, if it can be more

          9  efficiently done and the dollars can create more

         10  beds one place or the other, we ought to be doing

         11  that.

         12                 So, I raise it here and ask that when

         13  we do bring your agency back to youth services, that

         14  you have that kind of answer available for me, and

         15  so we can discuss this as a policy as well as a

         16  budget issue.

         17                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Be happy to do

         18  that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER: Thank you very

         20  much, Commissioner.

         21                 COMMISSIONER HESS: You're welcome.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman.

         24                 I wanted to ask, Commissioner, about

         25  the 70 encampments that you mentioned that you had
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          2  cleared out. I'm making an assumption that those

          3  were the most difficult individuals to serve to get

          4  into a shelter. So, I wanted to congratulate you on

          5  that and ask what you did differently than what had

          6  been done in the past to get those individuals into

          7  the shelter system?

          8                 COMMISSIONER HESS: I appreciate the

          9  question. What we did was have a coordination with

         10  13 City and State agencies that really took a look

         11  at each encampment and the unique components of that

         12  encampment. Some were on multi-jurisdictional land.

         13  I mean, there were all kinds of issues on each of

         14  them, as you might imagine. But I think the biggest

         15  thing was just a serious social service engagement

         16  model that constantly went out and interacted with

         17  the people living there for at least two weeks in

         18  advance of any clean-up, to help those individuals

         19  understand that the area was going to be cleaned up.

         20  I explained their housing options. I worked with

         21  them to move into some of those housing options. Not

         22  everybody did. But I'd say probably 20 to 25 percent

         23  of the people that we came into contact with did, in

         24  fact, move into housing, and we were very pleased

         25  about that. The balance of those folks we continue
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          2  to engage on the streets on a daily basis and hope

          3  to be moving into housing shortly.

          4                 But I think it was the coordinated

          5  effort, and the good communication, and kind of the

          6  limits scope focusing in on 70 separate areas that

          7  was really very helpful to us, and we continue to do

          8  that. We continue to go back, revisit these sites,

          9  make sure that we don't have slippage, and look for

         10  new hot spots as well.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: The 75 percent

         12  that didn't come off the streets, they're not

         13  returning to those areas. They've just dissipated

         14  into other locations; is that --

         15                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Well, some have

         16  moved to other locations. We continue to engage them

         17  on a regular basis. Others we have not found at all.

         18  We don't know whether they went back to some other

         19  form of housing other than housing that we were

         20  offering, a return with family or friends or did

         21  something else. But many people we have not

         22  reengaged on the streets, and we know that they're

         23  not in the encampment area, and so we don't know

         24  where they went.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: So you kept
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          2  those encampment areas clear?

          3                 COMMISSIONER HESS: That's correct.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LAPPIN: Okay.

          5                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you.

          7                 Just a last point, I know we have to

          8  get out of here for the next hearing.

          9                 Commissioner, you can respond to this

         10  in writing or give us a quick answer now, but a lot

         11  of your testimony, a lot of your planning relies on

         12  a supply of permanent housing down the line. It

         13  seems that everything you've got you're quickly

         14  filling up, and I'm always a little struck how

         15  optimistic you are that more will be coming on line

         16  quickly. Is there an amount that you can tell us

         17  that's coming on line in the near future?

         18                 Or can you get back to us with a plan

         19  to understanding what you have coming on line?

         20  Because I think that's so crucial to making all of

         21  your pieces work here.

         22                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Certainly. We can

         23  certainly come back and show you a little matrix of

         24  what we expect to be available on a weekly basis

         25  with respect to the advantage housing and rental

                                                            59

          1  FINANCE AND GENERAL WELFARE COMMITTEES

          2  units that will be available there, with respect to

          3  kind of the ramp up of New York New York III, with

          4  respect to backfills of New York New York I and II

          5  units, of additional LMP (phonetic) and MRP

          6  (phonetic) units.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: I think that

          8  would be very helpful if you could just lay this out

          9  to us in writing so we can get a clear sense of your

         10  numbers going forward and how that keeps up with

         11  your demand.

         12                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Happy to do that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DeBLASIO: Thank you. And

         14  thank you very much to you and your team for your

         15  testimony. Sorry we had an abbreviated session.

         16                 And thank you, also, Chair Weprin,

         17  and all of our colleagues.

         18                 COMMISSIONER HESS: Thank you so much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON WEPRIN: Thank you. That

         20  ends this portion of the Homeless Services

         21  Committee.

         22                 We've been joined by Council Member

         23  Jimmy Vacca from the Bronx, Council Member Helen

         24  Sears from Queens, and we will now proceed jointly

         25  with the Committee on Public Safety, Chaired by
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          2  Peter Vallone, Jr., and hear from Police

          3  Commissioner Ray Kelly.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 10:20 a.m.)
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